
MINUTES OF MEETING 
LAKESIDE PLANTATION 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

The Regular Meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Lakeside Plantation Community 

Development District was held on Wednesday, January 17, 2018 at 7:00 p.m. at the Lakeside 

Plantation Clubhouse, 2200 Plantation Boulevard, North Port, Florida. 

Present and constituting a quorum were: 

Joe Szewczyk 
Harry Smith 
Alan (Bud) Sabol 
Camille Stephens 
Sharon Moore 

Also present were: 

George Flint 
Michael Eckert 
Michelle Kim 
David Robson 
Mallory Clancy 
Nathan Trates 
Heather Alexandre 
Residents 

FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS 

Chairman 
Vice Chairman 
Assistant Secretary 
Assistant Secretary 
Assistant Secretary 

District Manager 
District Counsel 
District Counsel 
District Engineer by phone 
Johnson Engineering by phone 
Amenities Manager 
Vesta 

Roll Call 

Mr. Flint called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m., called the roll, and lead the pledge of 

allegiance. All Supervisors were present. 

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS Audience Comments on Specific Items on 
the Agenda 

(Speakers will fill out a card and submit it to the District Manager prior to beginning of 

the meeting) 

Mr. Flint: This would be the opportunity, if anyone in the audience has comments on any 

agenda item, to provide that input to the Board. Please fill out a speaker form if you have any 

comments. We will have general audience comments later in the meeting, after "Business 
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Administration". Does anyone have any comments on any agenda items? Not hearing any, we 

will proceed to "Organizational Matters". 

TIDRD ORDER OF BUSINESS 

A. Election of Officers 

Organizational Matters 

B. Consideration of Resolution 2018-03 Electing Officers 

Mr. Flint: Every year the Board considers officers. Typically, we do that in January. 

Every two years and even numbered years, the Board has elections in November, when the other 

General Elections take place, and typically officers are elected at the January meeting. In odd 

number years, the Board chose to elect officers. The Board has Resolution 2018-03 in their 

agenda, which elects a Chairperson, Vice Chairperson, Secretary, Assistant Secretaries, 

Treasurer and Assistant Treasurer. The Chair and Vice Chair are required to be Board Members, 

and the other officers can be Board Members, but they don't have to be. Historically, the District 

Manager was designated as Secretary and the District Accountant, Arial Lovera was designated 

as Treasurer. Two Board Members were Chair and Vice Chair and the remaining three Board 

Members were designated as Assistant Secretaries to attest the Chair and Vice Chair signatures. 

Of course, you can choose to change that if you would like. The Board can make a motion 

electing a slate of officers, or we can go through each office individually and open the floor for 

nominations. What is the preference of the Board? 

Mr. Smith: I would rather have a slate of officers. l nominate Joe as Chairperson and 

myself as Vice Chairperson. 

Ms. Stephens: I nominate Bud to serve as Chairperson. 

Mr. Flint: Since there are different thoughts on who serves as Chair, we should take each 

seat individually. 

Mr. Szewczyk: We can do that. 

Mr. Sabol: I respectfully decline, as my wife and I are contemplating moving in the next 

couple of months. 

Ms. Stephens: I'm fine with that. 

On MOTION by Mr. Szewczyk, seconded by Ms. Moore, with all 
in favor, electing Joe Szewczyk as Chairman and Harry Smith as 
Vice Chairman was approved. 
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Mr. Flint: Does the Board want to designate the remaining three Board Members as 

Assistant Secretaries and leave Secretary and Treasurer the same? 

Mr. Smith: Yes. 

Ms. Stephens: Yes. 

On MOTION by Mr. Szewczyk, seconded by Mr. Smith, with all 
in favor, Resolution 2018-03 Electing Officers, designating Joe 
Szewczyk as Chairman, Harry Smith as Vice Chairman, George 
Flint as Secretary, Camille Stephens, Sharon Moore and Bud Sabol 
as Assistant Secretaries and Arial Lovera as Treasurer, was 
adopted. 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS District Engineer's Report 

Mr. Flint: Dave Robson, the District Engineer is on the phone. He also has an associate. 

They were here the last couple of days, doing reviews and inspections. 

Mr. Robson: Good evening, Dave Robson, Johnson Engineering. I am accompanied by 

Mallory Clancy of Johnson Engineering. We dedicated Tuesday to evaluate all of the lakes and 

preserves in Lakeside Plantation. We did not pull weeds, but we looked into the same things that 

you did on the preserves. We took photographs and generated a report that will be in the next 

agenda for discussion at the next meeting. 

Mr. Flint: It sounds like you performed a site visit and are in the process of preparing a 

report regarding maintenance of the conservation areas, which is on the Action Items List. Are 

you are planning to attend the February meeting to present that report? 

Mr. Robson: Yes. In addition, we will provide recommendations on all of the lakes 

regarding lake bank erosion. 

Mr. Smith: Is there anything that needs to be addressed before next month, in your 

opinion? 

Mr. Robson: No. On Tuesday, we didn't see anything severe enough to cause concern. 

These fared better than I had hoped, especially after the hurricane and a bad storm in August. 

That being said, we still have some action items to complete. Nothing that I could recall during 

that tour addressed any immediate concerns. 

Mr. Smith: I'm fme with waiting until next month. 

Mr. Szewczyk: So am I. 
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Mr. Flint: If we can get that report a week before the meeting, we will include it in the 

agenda package. 

Mr. Smith: Did he get a chance to look at the playground or could he look at that before 

February? 

Mr. Flint: The issue with the playground and drainage was brought up previously. I 

think we were waiting for it to dry out, to determine if there are drainage issues and what 

potential steps the District could take to address those. 

Mr. Robson: We stopped at the Clubhouse and looked at some of the refurbishments. I 

wasn't asked to look at the playground, but we can do that before the February meeting. We will 

let you know when we will be there. 

Mr. Smith: Okay. 

Mr. Flint: Sounds good. Is there anything else for the District Engineer? Not hearing 

any, thanks Dave and Mallory. 

Mr. Robson and Ms. Clancy left the meeting. 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Unfinished Business Items 

A. Consideration of Resolution 2018-01 Authorizing Notice of Rule 
Development and Rule Making 

Mr. Flint: You have Resolution 2018-01, authorizing staff to notice a rule development 

and rulemaking hearing. The Resolution was drafted by Jere with Hopping, Green & Sams per 

the Board's discussion and direction, dealing with the area between the back of curb and the 

sidewalk. The Board expressed interest in the possibility of the District exerting some control 

over that portion of the road right-of-way (ROW) between the back of curb and the sidewalk. 

The minutes indicated that Jere was in communication with the City Attorney's Office and 

Planning Department and was waiting for feedback. I think Mike was going to follow up. 

Mr. Eckert: I believe that Jere sent an email to the Board on November 27 that included 

the City regulation regarding gravel in the ROW. He confirmed with the City that they would 

enforce that provision. Depending on what level of communication you want to have with the 

City, that is in their code and something that they can enforce, even though these are CDD roads. 

The resolution you have before you, is to provide some authority for the District, if there's a 

health, safety, and welfare reason to remove items in the road ROW area that were placed by 

others. Anything permitted to go in there, has to comply with Florida Law, which includes the 
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City Code that prohibits that. I don't know what direction the Board wants to go with this, but 

the resolution allows you to at least deal with the health, safety, and welfare if in fact you want to 

go in that direction. 

Mr. Smith: I don't know about anybody else, but I'm still confused about the resolution 

regarding the ROWs. I know this came up because people put some stones out there and others 

placed pavers or put in trees. That's when we said "We need to do something so we don't have 

everybody doing something different." As Mike just said that the stones out here are illegal. The 

City said that they will enforce it. That's a City rule, not our rule. They said they would look at 

that. Do we need to have something that says we are going to enforce the City rules? That's 

how I'm interpreting this. Am I right or wrong? 

Mr. Eckert: No. I think what you are reading is this resolution gives us the ability if 

there is a health, safety or welfare reason why we need to remove something, it's very clear that 

we can remove it. We are not going to be enforcing the City code. We never do that and don't 

have the authority to do that. Just like we don't have the authority to enforce HOA covenants, 

which was one of the first issues that you asked me to look at when I started working with you. 

The intent is not for us to enforce the City rule. The intent is, if somebody places something in 

there and it's a threat to health, safety or welfare of the residents, this resolution is very clear that 

we can remove it. If you put something in there that you shouldn't be putting in there, we can 

actually levy a fine. It's not the intent to enforce the City code. The intent is to have the ability 

to enforce what can go on land that the CDD owns. It is more from a landowner's perspective 

than a City code perspective. 

Mr. Szewczyk: We are looking at it from a health, safety and welfare standpoint, right, 

and not necessarily an aesthetic standpoint? 

Mr. Eckert: That's correct. Aesthetics isn't the issue. It's a health, safety and welfare 

issue, but that's a fairly broad category. If the Board is not 100% comfortable with moving 

forward on this, you can defer it and study the issue longer. We followed up with the City like 

we said we would, obtained the Ordinance and sent it to everyone the first of December. 

Ms. Moore: Health, safety and welfare isn't something that we would necessarily get 

involved with. If there are issues, it should be reported to the City and dealt that way. 

Mr. Eckert: I think the City already has a code in place that addresses that, so it's not a 

good idea. 
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code. 

Ms. Moore: It's not a good idea to try to enforce something that's already in the City 

Mr. Eckert: Correct. 

Ms. Stephens: If we are not comfortable with this, how much further can we talce it? 

Mr. Eckert: First of all, reporting violations to the City is something that any person can 

do. All I'm saying is that this resolution would give you very clear power, not only to remove 

things, but to levy a fine, if you want to go that route. You just have to decide how far into this 

issue you want to go. Has it really been a problem to where you have to adopt the rule and have 

the ability to levy a fine on people doing something on your land that you don't allow? 

Ms. Moore: Would we decide for each incident, not to allow it? For example, if 

someone put a bunch of bushes in, which creates a line-of-sight issue for people backing out of 

their driveway, we could say that it's a safety issue and have them remove it. If they don't, we 

are going to remove it and levy a fine. 

Mr. Eckert: It would have to come to the Board. We will bring it to your attention and 

you would make the decision. I would never remove someone's bushes. This just starts the 

rulemalcing process. It's not effective. You must go through a hearing with public notice to 

establish the rule. 

Ms. Moore: This allows us to start the process to establish the rule. 

Mr. Eckert: Correct. 

Ms. Moore moved to adopt Resolution 2018-01 Authorizing 
Notice of Rule Development and Rule Making, and Mr. Szewczyk 
seconded the motion. 

Mr. Flint: Is there any further discussion? 

Mr. Smith: I'm good. 

On VOICE VOTE with all in favor, Resolution 2018-01 
Authorizing Notice of Rule Development and Rule Making, was 
adopted. 

Mr. Flint: There's a 29 and 28-day notice that must be published, so the public hearing 

would likely be held at your March regular meeting, because we wouldn't be able to meet the 

notice requirements for February. 
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SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS New Business Items 

A. Consideration of Resolution 2018-04 Designating the Primary Administrative 
Office and Physical Headquarters 

Mr. Flint: This is a resolution that Mike's office prepared for designating the primary 

administrative office. 

Mr. Eckert: It designates two offices. One was the primary administrative office. There 

are some new protections for local governments that went into place with the last legislative 

session, in terms of public records requestors abusing the law. In order for you to take advantage 

of one of these protections, you must formally designate your chief administrative office. I think 

that's George's office, which is in the resolution. We also wanted to make clear that's not our 

location for purposes of venue. Venue is the concept of where you can be sued. We designated 

this office for venue purposes. The resolution just takes care of both of those things at the same 

time. If you have litigation, you would want it to be in the County you are located in. 

On MOTION by Mr. Szewczyk, seconded by Mr. Smith, with all 
in favor, Resolution 2018-04 Designating the Primary 
Administrative Office and Physical Headquarters, was adopted. 

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Business Administration 

A. Approval of Minutes of November 15, 2017 Meeting 

Mr. Flint: Did the Board have any additions, deletions or corrections to the minutes? 

Not hearing any, 

On MOTION by Ms. Stephens, seconded by Mr. Smith with all in 
favor, the minutes of the November 15, 2017 meeting, were 
approved. 

B. Approval of Check Registers 

Mr. Flint: You have the Check Registers for November, totaling $391,558.99 and for 

December totaling $144,204.06. The detailed register and invoices are behind the summary. 

You will notice that there are transfers to the Trustee for some assessment revenue checks. They 

are not actual expenses. Are there any questions on the Check Registers? 
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Mr. Szewczyk: I was looking at some of the bills. Can someone explain to me what's 

going on with our electric bill? From one month to the next, it was $650 more, then $120 more 

and finally $385 more. Is someone tapping into our lines? That was a big difference from one 

month to the next. 

Mr. Trates: It was for the pool heaters and Christmas lights. 

Mr. Flint: Joe, I can look at the actual invoices and get back to you with a detailed 

response. 

Mr. Szewczyk: Okay. 

Mr. Flint: We can look at the prior year, as well. I will get back to you with a response 

and copy the entire Board. 

Mr. Szewczyk: That's all I had. 

Mr. Flint: Are there any other questions, not hearing any, we need a motion to approve 

the November and December Check Registers. 

On MOTION by Mr. Smith, seconded by Mr. Szewczyk, with all in 
favor, the November and December Check Registers, were 
approved. 

C. Balance Sheet and Income Statement 

Mr. Flint: You also have the Unaudited Financial Statements through December 31, 

2017. This reflects the first three months of Fiscal Year 2018. No action is required by the 

Board, but if you have any questions, we can discuss those. Through December 31st, we've 

collected $519,000 of the $656,000 for on-roll assessments. Our assessments are generally under 

our prorated expenses for administrative operations and Clubhouse. Clubhouse is slightly over. 

Are there any questions on the financial statements? 

Mr. Szewczyk: I have a question on the variance. Water utility services for Clubhouse is 

$6,685 over what our prorated budget would be. Can anyone explain that one? 

Mr. Trates: We had a few water line breaks. 

Mr. Szewczyk: A few? 

Mr. Trates: Yes. We had two water line breaks; one by the front entrance fountain that 

was caused by one of our landscapers, and the other on one on of the backflows at the 

Clubhouse. 
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Mr. Szewczyk: Are we being compensated for the one caused by the landscaper through 

insurance if they were the ones that caused the issue? 

Mr. Flint: They agreed to pay for the replacement of the pump motor that got burned out 

as a result of the line break. We did not go after Bloomings to request reimbursement for any of 

the water bills, but we can look into that, and if it makes sense, we can reach out to them. 

Mr. Szewczyk: It was $6,600. 

Mr. Smith: Not all of that is upfront. Some of it was for a backflow that broke here. 

Mr. Trates: For Hurricane Irma, the pool was drained about 1 2  inches. 

Mr. Szewczyk: So it had to be refilled. 

Mr. Trates: Yes. 

Mr. Flint: We will go back and look at the utility bill. Sometimes the City will give you 

a credit on the sewer portion of the water bill when you are refilling pools. We will see ifwe can 

get a credit for a portion of that. 

Mr. Szewczyk: Okay. 

Ms. Moore: It looks like a good part of it was on the November 30th bill. 

Mr. Flint: Those are good questions. 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS General Audience Comments 

Mr. Flint: Now is an opportunity for any members of the public to provide comments to 

the Board. Please state your name and address and try to limit your comments to three minutes. 

Mr. Perry: Ron Perry, 1 663 Scarlett Avenue. I have a few comments, starting with the 

pool. Once again, the pool was shut down in September for an extended length of time. We all 

know that breakdowns are not always foreseeable, but being prepared for one is. Our pool motor 

and pump are critical pieces of equipment, and it is the fault of this management company and 

this Board for not recognizing and acting on the need for a readily available backup. You have 

been operating this filtration system with your fingers crossed. Once again, let the residents 

enjoy the facility. I would hope that you learned your lesson and that a backup pump is on order. 

Additionally, it's time to take a good look at cleaning the pool filter. We shouldn't have to sit in 

chairs that have dirt on its arms and mold on the backs. Regarding the Boulevard lighting, which 

was discussed at the November 1 5th meeting, the junction boxes are rotting out at the bottom and 

the wiring connections are exposed to the point of where there have been two fires. Why is 
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every light being powered, knowing the potential for another fire? The issues with lighting is 

something that the administration has been aware of for a long time, and yet, at the October 

meeting, when discussing the Action Item List, Mr. Flint said, "Streetlights were on here at one 

point, but it looks like it dropped off." In addition, with the new concern of corroded pole bases, 

Mr. Flint said, "wiring has always been an issue. " This is a situation where issues are going to 

result in an incident, whether an electrocution or fallen pole, and the CDD is going to be 

negligent. I would hope that any improvements to the lighting would include total rewiring, 

underground boxes and removal of a number of Magnolia trees that were planted so close to the 

lights that they are no longer effective for lighting the street, and that this entire project be fast 

tracked. Regarding the entrance pergola, the issue right now, is that the framework on the 

entrance side pergola shifted. Some columns are starting to lean. This issue was brought up at 

the September meeting, with the understanding that the District Engineer would inspect the 

pergola columns, but yet at the October meeting, Mr. Robson had nothing to report and Mr. Flint 

made the deGision that his services were not needed, and relied on the recommendation of a 

contractor. The first decision was to tear out all of the Bougainvillea before doing anything. As 

a proud member of this community, I would be embarrassed to have an entry feature on one side, 

stripped of vegetation, while the other side is lush. Having 34 y�ars in Industrial Management, 

does not make me an expert by any stretch of the imagination, but since we are not going to 

employ a Structural Engineer, in my humble opinion, I would think that a rather inexpensive 

initial path would be to mechanically pull the framework back perpendicular and install 

structural wood bracing behind each column to prevent them from moving, without touching the 

vegetation. These braces will not be readily noticeable as they would extend down around it and 

the vegetation would hide the pergola. Lastly, I want to discuss the gym equipment. I am a 

regular user of the gym, and late this past fall, while working out, a contractor worked on the lite 

fitness machine. This piece of equipment has had a history of noisy banging operation. When 

the contractor left, the machine functioned much quieter, but within two weeks, it was back to 

making a racket again, and now the machine is unusable while we wait for parts. If the vendor 

that charged you for repairs was paid, then we got taken. There is gym equipment that doesn't 

work for an extended period of time, such as the stair stepper keypad, which is finally working 

after at least a year or it squeaks and bangs. I note that we paid Fitness Logic $145 a quarter for 
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cleaning and maintenance, but I question what we are getting for our money. Thank you for the 

opportunity to provide input. 

Mr. Flint: Is there any other public comment? 

Mr. Vann: Jud Vann, 1658 Scarlett Avenue. Regarding the pool, I ran a multi-million-

dollar operation for 14 years in New York, and we had a preventative maintenance program. I 

brought this up three years ago, but nothing was done. It would take care of a lot of the problems 

that we have around here with the pool. We have a maintenance person, who is Brad, but I don't 

know who hired him or knows his qualifications. He can take care of the electrical and the pool 

for us. Everyone wants to be proud of this place, but we are not taking care of it the way that it 

should be taken care of. It costs nothing for you to take care of it. Preventative maintenance is 

simple. I talked to Brad myself today, and he said that he would be more than willing to learn 

how to do anything that he could physically do during the time he is here. If that's the case, let 

them work all they want. How do you know the salary? I don't know if Vesta hires anyone, but 

we can investigate that. A third example is if you know anything about motors, which Ron 

brought up, hydraulic relays would stop that motor from burning up and save us a lot of money, 

by not having to replace another one. We are foolish in the way that we spend money, without 

looking at the details. 

Mr. Flint: Are there any further audience comments? Hearing none, we will proceed to 

"Staff Reports." 

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 

A. District Counsel 

Mr. Flint: Mike? 

Mr. Eckert: I have no report. 

Staff Reports 

B. District Manager - Action Items 

Mr. Flint: You have the Action Items List. The District Engineer is going to present a 

report on the preserve maintenance and the pond inspection at the February meeting. The last 

traffic enforcement was in October. We did not do it in November and December. I have it 

scheduled for later this month. I don't know if the Board has any thoughts on continuing the 

traffic enforcement, whether this month or discuss in February after we receive the reports. 

Mr. Szewczyk: I would like to see us do it in January and review the reports in February. 
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Mr. Flint: We will do it at the end of this month and bring back reports at the February 

meeting. What about the additional eating areas at the pool, Nathan? 

Mr. Trates: That was taken care of a few months ago. 

Mr. Flint: I indicate this as completed on the Action Item List. We added additional 

seating. The Board set a public hearing for March to deal with the area between the back of curb 

and the sidewalk. We kept Item 5 on the Action Item List. We received a proposal for 

modifying the landscaping in front of the Clubhouse, but we weren't happy with it. The Board 

asked us to get a proposal from Bloomings. We have been unsuccessful in  doing that. If this is a 

high priority for the Board, we can push this forward. If not, then we can drop it from the list. 

Tell me what you want to do. 

Ms. Moore: At a minimum, I think we have to address it. They have done some pruning 

and removed old shrubbery. I would rather have all grass on that island. We can't find flowers 

that can do well there. We need something colorful. 

Mr. Flint: How does the rest of the Board feel? 

Mr. Smith: I would like to see something nice out there. I believe that we should have 

that for our community, the flag pole area and the island. We should do something, but I also 

know that there are a lot of big expenses that we are looking at right now. I think it's important 

to do, but I also think that we need to watch where and how we spend the money to do that. I 

think Sharon's  right, if we could find some plants that would look nice and have some color in 

them, that would be fine. If not, then I don't know. We have had problems out there. It seems 

like nothing really wants to grow there. 

Mr. Szewczyk: I'm not too concerned with building physical things out here. We 

sodded a lot of areas for line-of-sight issues and took a lot of the end cap flowers away. I'm 

fairly sure that we wanted what was left of the flower areas to be pristine at the entrance and at 

the end caps. Bloomings has not come through in that regard. When we go out the back way 

and see how tightly packed those flowers are, we have nothing. I would like to see Bloomings 

come up with a better plan. You would probably pay double the amount that they do in order to 

cover those end caps. I would like to see more color at the entrance and in this area. 

Mr. Smith: The proposal was $ 12,000, wasn't it? 

Ms. Moore: That was to redo everything. I'm just talking about the flowers up front. 
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Ms. Stephens: When you are going out the back way, there are people working there all 

the time cleaning, such as the landscape people. We don't have that here. When I go to work in 

the morning, there are people out there working, pruning, cleaning and cutting. We don't have 

that here. Bloomings is running the ball and I'm very disappointed in them. My theory is that 

less is better, and I agree with Sharon to just install grass, but people l ike color. How much 

money are we going to waste on getting color if it's not taking? 

Mr. Sabol: If you go next door, HOA fees are much higher. If you want to raise HOA 

fees to pay more, it could look nicer. 

Ms. Stephens: Absolutely. Just put in grass and maintain it. It is less expensive, less of 

a headache and no one is going to complain that the flowers are dying or there are weeds there. 

We have a company that we are paying and they should be doing something. 

Mr. Smith: I agree with Joe and Camille. I believe it's a Bloomings issue and somebody 

needs to get on Bloomings. As you said, we told Bloomings that we wanted this area spruced up 

and to give us some drawings. They sent a drawing that my two-year-old granddaughter 

could've done better. I don't mean to downplay it, but it really was terrible. We took the 

flowers off of the end cap and put grass out there. Those flowers were supposed to be 

transferred up here. I don't see where we are getting what we are supposed to be getting. I 

personally would like to see flowers. I don't want to say that I don't want to see more grass, 

because I want to see grass too. This community needs to be remembered by something. We 

don't want to be a community where everything is grassed. I think we need to have something to 

make it look nice. We need to tell Bloomings, "Either do this or we will find another company. " 

Ms. Stephens: I agree. The beauty has to start when you first pull up to the development. 

We can't drop the ball. It has to start from there and continue throughout the development. 

Mr. Sabol: Let's talk about the front. Didn't we have someone that was supposed to 

come in and look at the flowers out front on the pole? Wasn't that supposed to take place last 

month? 

Mr. Smith: Flowers on the poles? 

Mr. Sabol: The Bougainvilleas are caving in. 

Ms. Stephens: Are you talking about the trellis? 

Mr. Sabol: Yes. 

13 



January 1 7, 2018 Lakeside Plantation CDD 

Mr. Smith: He is talking about pergolas, which we will get to, unless you want to talk 

about it now. I was going to allow George to finish his report. 

Mr. Flint: That's number 1 1 , which is further down the list. 

Ms. Moore: I guess what we are saying is that we.are looking for a proposal to replace 

the dead flowers, on a permanent basis, out here and on the end caps right up front. 

Mr. Flint: I will coordinate with Bloomings and Nathan. We will get Tom Pachano. I 

don't know if you want to designate a Board Member to participate in that process. 

Ms. Moore: You need to emphasize that we are really, really . tired of having to deal with 

something so ridiculous. They plant these flowers and two weeks later they look terrible. Then 

they sit there for three months. 

Mr. Flint: The geraniums haven't done well. 

Ms. Moore: Nothing has done well. 

Mr. Szewczyk: The geraniums didn't do well last year either, so it' s about time we 

change them with something else. 

Mr. Flint: Does the Board want to designate a Board Member to participate in that 

process? 

Mr. Smith: I will do it since no one else will. 

Mr. Szewczyk: I can't be here before 5 :30 p.m. 

Mr. Flint: It' s difficult for Bloomings to meet in the evening. 

Mr. Smith: If it's okay with everyone else, I will do it. 

Ms. Stephens: I would be happy to volunteer, but my feeling is that there would always 

be grass. 

Mr. Flint: Item 6 was addressed. For Item 7, the Board authorized Bloomings to do the 

work, at your last meeting and they are in the process of scheduling that work. We anticipated 

that it would be some time in February that they would be able to do that. The Kings III phone 

was installed, so that action item is complete. The evaluation of the drainage in the playground 

area was discussed with the District Engineer. He will be looking at that prior to your February 

meeting. Then we have the streetlight replacement and pergola repair, which Harry was going to 

address. 

Mr. Smith: I will let Nathan discuss the streetlights, because he knows more about it. He 

was closely involved with that company. As far as the pergolas, to answer your question, Ron, I 
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had eight different contractors come out here to look at the pergolas as far as repairing them. I 

was told that the only way to repair them was to tear them down and rebuild. 

Mr. Perry: A contractor is going to tell you whatever works best and makes them the 

most money. We are not talking about a major overall. 

Mr. Smith: I think we are. 

Mr. Perry: If the District Engineer looked at that, he would probably agree with me. I 

don't know what companies you are looking at, but it's ridiculous to rely on a contractor to tell 

you what needs to be done, instead of you telling me what you want. 

Mr. Smith: I feel differently, probably because I've worked in that field. If l go out there 

and tell him that all he needs is to take a rope, tie it to the bumper and pull it straight, nail it back 

down and we are good. Tomorrow, I will have another contractor out here with a rope and a 

truck. I can do that myself. The problem comes down to whether there is a 6x6 inside of there 

that has a piece of metal on the bottom in a U-shape that's nailed to the concrete. That metal is 

bending. The only way to fix that metal is to remove the roof and column. I will agree with that 

100%. 

Mr. Perry: If they are bent one way, it can bend back the other way. 

Mr. Smith: Once again, I have to look at the safety and welfare of this community, and I 

believe that it needs more than pulling it up. 

Mr. Perry: Pull it back and then brace it to keep it in place. 

Mr. Smith: The problem with bracing it is there is a sidewalk that goes underneath there. 

Mr. Perry: The bracing will go behind the pergola. 

Mr. Smith: I 'm not going to get into that. 

Ms. Moore: Harry has a lot of knowledge and I think we should find out what we need to 

do. We should have an Engineer evaluate it. 

Mr. Smith: Everyone looks at it and runs away. Nobody wants to take the job. It will 

have to be engineered, looked at by an Architectural Engineer and permitted by the City, because 

of the sidewalk going underneath it. As far as the Bougainvilleas, they will have to come down. 

Ms. Moore: Harry, did you say that you met with numerous contractors and they all said 

that they will have to start over and that none of them wanted to do the job? 

Mr. Smith: They didn't  want to do it, because the project is too big and too time 

consuming. I had one company tell me that they can't do it, because they have another big job 
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and couldn't do it until next year. I told them that next year was fine with me, but I haven't  

heard another word from them. 

Ms. Moore: Does it make sense, Harry, to have an Architectural Engineer? 

Mr. Smith: I think that we should talk to the guy tomorrow to see what he has to say and 

see where it goes from there. 

Mr. Flint: The contractor that Harry is meeting with was referred by the Architect that 

the District hired to do the Master Plan for the amenities. I contacted them because I remembered 

that he worked with small contractors that build pergolas, trellises, benches, things that they 

design as part of their plan. They are in Bradenton and will be coming here tomorrow. I have 

another contractor that will also be coming over the weekend that does work for Disney and a lot 

of this type of work. I 'm hopeful between those two contractors, we will be able to make some 

progress on that issue. 

Ms. Stephens: If the final decision is that it needs to be torn down and re-built, are we 

going to rebuild it and do we have any idea what it would cost us? I'm just curious. 

Mr. Flint: We are going to get proposals and the Board will have to make a decision. 

Ms. Stephens: If it's really that unsafe, maybe it should be tom down. If it can't be made 

structurally sound the way that Mr. Perry suggested, maybe it should be torn down and started 

from scratch. 

Mr. Flint: I think we will know more after tomorrow and after this weekend. Then the 

Bqard can discuss it at our next monthly meeting. 

Ms. Moore: Can we talk a little about the pool, since that was an issue, particularly the 

issue about the pool motors? Several of us had brought up several times that we should have all 

of the guts/mechanics replaced. The experts said that we don't need to have that done and then, 

sure enough, three months later, another pump goes out. I don't know how many pumps there 

are and how many times they keep going down. I think we need to start thinking about whether 

we want to redo the mechanics. 

Ms. Stephens: I don't think we have a choice. I think they have to start with square one. 

It's been said and everybody pretty much feels the same way. It's like Joe said a few months ago 

about the streetlights; they all had to be replaced. We are going to have to bite the bullet. That is 

what has to be done. These things are a necessity. We have to realize that it is the Board's 

responsibility to the community to maintain everything to the highest standards. That is our 
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responsibility, and we have to do the best. Sometimes we don't have the best technicians, but we 

don't know that, so it' s like trial and error, but we have to do the best that we can to make sure 

that everything is always running as best as we can that is safe for the community. 

Mr. Sabol: Since I have been here, for three years, it's been the same excuse, "A motor 

went down", so another company replaced the motor. I agree with Camille. I think during the 

month, you have someone get some prices on motors and pumps in that pool. We can do it 

during May when we redo the pool. 

Mr. Flint: I have a company called Spies who build a lot of resort pools. They wouldn't 

come down to replace a motor, but they would come down to evaluate the entire system and give 

you a recommendation, if you were going to redo the pumps and motors, what that would cost. I 

think it is time to do that. 

Ms. Moore: Yes. 

Mr. Flint: I talked with them last week about it and they are happy to come down here 

and do that. 

Ms. Moore: That's the first step. Is that something we can do sooner than May? 

Mr. Flint: I would suggest doing it sooner and then you can have a discussion. 

Ms. Moore: We would definitely do the evaluation ASAP. Based on that, if it comes 

back that we need to redo the entire mechanics, we know that the pool would be down for a few 

weeks. I have no idea how long it takes to do the mechanics. That would be part of that 

evaluation, then we will decide when and what. 

Mr. Flint: The other big issue is the streetlights. Part of the struggle was finding vendors 

that would do that type of work. There are some site contractors that do that type of work. We 

received a referral from the City of North Port for a company that they use called Energy Savers. 

Nathan and Harry have been working with them to get a proposal. We had one other proposal 

that we were hoping to get by today's meeting, but we have not received that proposal yet. In 

your agenda package, you have a proposal from Energy Savers, to replace the main panel, due to 

corrosion or deterioration. The cost for the replacement is $9,800. 

Ms. Stephens: Where is that panel, George? 

Mr. Trates: Its half a mile down the road where the fencing is, right before the carriage 

homes. 

Mr. Smith: It's a big box. Then there's another one that is by the gas station. 
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Mr. Flint: The one by the gas station is not in this quote. It will need to be replaced as 

well. They provided a proposal to replace seven damaged poles. There is an option to replace 

all 5 1  poles and fixtures, with a similar style globe on the pole. The issue is that the City enacted 

a Dark Sky Ordinance for lighting, where they don't want any streetlights that project light 

upward. They want a light that projects down. The style that we have right now would not be 

replaced with the same style. That was subsequent to this information going out to the Board. 

Energy Savers provided a handout that provided a couple of examples of poles that would be 

acceptable to the City. One is a colonial style and has a top on it, so that it doesn't project 

upwards. Then there's another style that has an arm that shines down. A 20-foot-high pole is 

not geared toward you. That would be a different situation where you probably have to re

engineer it to reduce the number of poles and have tower poles. 

Ms. Moore: Are you talking about Figure 3? 

Mr. Flint: I t  would be Figure one, with a double head. It would look like Figure 2, 

which has a triple head, but it would have a double head pole. 

Ms. Moore: Is Figure 3 closer to what we want? 

Mr. Flint: My understanding is that is a taller pole, which would require a redesign. I 

think Nathan should address this, because he's been talking with the company. 

Mr. Trates: I have been working with Steve from Energy Savers, which was referred by 

the City of North Port, for about two months now, to work on this report. The style that Sharon 

mentioned are the poles that range from 20 to 25 feet. Those are the ones that must have wider 

bases. In the proposal, the lights will be in poured concrete footers. Steve didn't see that as a 

good option and didn't want to give that to us, because then you are in the range of $100,000 to 

$ 150,000, because the footers are sometimes double and triple in size. Trees will have to be 

ripped out to accommodate the size. 

Ms. Moore: I heard that our poles are no longer available and they don't meet the new 

City requirements. 

Mr. Trates: The original quote that Steve brought was colonial style. He also had the 

acorn style, which we currently have. He reached out to Ben Newman at the City of North Port 

about the issue. They turned him down, due to the Dark Skies Ordinance and we can't be 

grandfathered in, since the community was built with that style of lighting. Steve from Energy 
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Savers has the backup of the colonial style, and luckily that was part of the recommendations 

from the City on what would work for the community and be in the City's code for the lighting. 

Ms. Moore: So you are talking about Figure 1, for a double light? 

Mr. Trates: There are 5 1  poles. The double heads in the middle of the median along 

Plantation Boulevard would remain the same. This also includes single poles, as well, along 

Plantation Boulevard. 

Ms. Moore: What color will they be? 

Mr. Trates: I believe that the City has a color requirement, which is dark brown/charcoal. 

Mr. Smith: I'm not familiar with that. It says that it's for collector or local roadways. 

This is considered to be a collector road, which means we would have to go to Figure 3. I 'm 

confused. Maybe that's part of this entire deal with the City. I don't know. I have been to the 

City and it takes forever to get a true answer from them. What I am hearing is that they are 

letting us do Figure 1 and Figure 2 in our community. 

Mr. Sabol: Let's talk about the trees. The trees are beautiful. There's no doubt about 

that, but there are so many Magnolia trees and maybe we don't need as many lights as we think. 

With the Magnolia trees, a lot of times, you go down the street and the trees are blocking the 

light. If you trim the trees a little, maybe we can reduce the number of the lights. 

Mr. Trates: I can definitely check into that. 

Ms. Stephens: I think it was more of a problem keeping the trees pruned. 

Ms. Moore: These trees were planted a long time ago to look nice and now that they are 

so big, they don't look that nice. I think the solution should include whether to remove some of 

those trees or reduce the height. I don't see the point of having lights burying the trees. That's 

where quite a few of them are. Maybe we have too many lights. I don't know. This is the time 

to re-evaluate, not just replace what's there, but to take a look and say, "What 's the best way to 

get it right for the next 15 to 20 years?" Obviously, we have a pretty strict City with their rules 

and regulations. 

Mr. Szewczyk: I agree. We probably need to look at it from the standpoint of not 

needing 51 lights. Are there requirements for the amount of light that has to be shown on that 

street? 

Mr. Smith: Yes. 
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Mr. Szewczyk: If so, maybe instead of 51 lights, we can properly place them with the 

movement of landscaping. Can it be done with 45 poles? I don't know. That's why I agree with 

Sharon that we need an overall look at where these poles are, what our vegetation looks like and 

how we can best set it up going forward? They lasted 15 years and we need to make sure that 

the next set is going to last us, so that we can make adjustments now and do it at one time. 

Ms. Moore: We should get the expert to come in and tell us what we need to do, which 

costs money, so that we do it correctly, in the most effective way and will last a long time. 

Mr. Trates: In regards to cutting the poles down, if you want to do that, that is where the 

pricing gets higher, the maintenance gets higher and the footer gets larger. It then becomes an 

overkill project in the long run, according to the lighting contractor that I have been working 

with. 

Mr. �zewczyk: Less poles mean bigger poles. 

Mr. Trates: There has to be a certain amount of light output, according to the code, so if 

we are keeping the poles at the same height, everything must have the same voltage. 

Ms. Moore: We are not hearing what the light output is. Do we need 51 poles to meet 

the City's requirements for light output? If that's a fact, then you have to replace 51 lights. Do 

we have to change the rules to have 40 poles or are some of them purely decorative? 

Mr. Smith: The light is measured in candle feet. You must have .9 to 10 candle feet on 

any collector road, which is a huge gap between 1 and 10. It's  a minimum of .9 and a maximum 

of 10. That way they don' t  have what they are calling "light pollution. " That being said, we 

talked to them about having less poles. I think what Nathan is saying is that they did the 

photometric engineering and said that this is what we need to get the candle feet that we need. If 

we eliminate some of the trees, we might be able to eliminate a pole here and there. If you go to 

a taller pole, then you have a wider area that is covered, but a taller pole also means when there 

is a problem and the bulb needs to be replaced, Brad can't just take a ladder, put it out there, 

climb the ladder and put a new bulb in. Now we have to hire somebody with a cherry picker to 

go up to replace a bulb, so you are talking about $200 to replace a $20 light bulb. I don't know 

what the cost is so don't hold me to those numbers. That's  somewhat what Nathan is saying and 

what Steve told Nathan. I heard that through several people. There is another company that we 

have been working with. They tried to get an estimate to us for tonight, but apparently, it didn't  

arrive in time. Hopefully, by the middle of the week I will have that. One of the things that we 
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are looking at, as Ron brought up, is a safety issue that we need to address ASAP. The safety 

issue is that we have boxes, and because of the sprinkler system and mother nature, these boxes 

rusted out and there is the potential for exposed wires. The fire that Ron talked about was in the 

ground, at a pole. That goes back to what we paid to have all new taps. The taps that they put in 

were not proper. I'm trying to be as honest as I can. This is what happened. That being said, we 

are back to square one. I think the company that Nathan is working with and the company that 

we are also trying to get a bid from, are reputable. The City actually uses Energy Savers to do 

some of their lighting and they were referred to us. They were upfront and contacted Nathan 

every other day to let them know where things were, whether an email or phone call. Power 

Electric got a bad start, but they've come through. I talked to the son of the owner and he just 

dropped the ball. When the owner found out he said, "I will have somebody there tomorrow." A 

lady drove down two hours to meet me out here and go through the neighborhood. 

Ms. Moore: I heard you say that we need 51 poles. We talked about cutting some of 

these trees back. With the size of the trees, we are going to have to go through the City to get 

tree removal approval. Those Magnolias are big. Do we really want to get into that or go with 

the 51 poles and move ahead? 

Mr. Smith: My personal recommendation would be to move ahead with the 51 poles. 

Ms. Moore: Is this going to address the safety issue, or is that something that's addressed 

separately? 

Mr. Trates: This also includes rewiring of all of the boxes? 

Mr. Smith: It's an additional $10,000. 

Mr. Trates: That is for the control panel, not the rewiring. 

Ms. Moore: Was the rewiring the other fee? 

Mr. Trates: The rewiring was included in the price from Energy Savers for $36,727 to 

replace all of the poles. 

Mr. Flint: They had to pull all new wire for all of the poles. 

Ms. Stephens: Do we have a Service Agreement or contract with them where if 

something goes wrong they will come and take care of it? 

Mr. Flint: There will be a warranty. 

Ms. Moore: Since we don't have two proposals, should we wait and see what the other 

proposal is? 
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Mr. Flint: You can do that or set a not-to-exceed amount, and if the other proposal is less 

and they are a qualified firm, you could give discretion to a Board Member to make the final 

decision, if you didn't want to wait a month. 

Ms. Stephens: I think in light of what transpired, we should go ahead with this. 

Mr. Szewczyk: Harry, are you meeting with this other company tomorrow? 

Mr. Smith: No, the pergolas are tomorrow. I'm waiting to hear back from them. 

Mr. Flint: You already met with them. You are just waiting on a proposal from them. 

Mr. Sabol: You are going to put 51 lights in. It's going to be twice as big and then you 

are going to have another problem. Why don't you take a chain saw, remove part of the trees 

and then take a good look at it? You can save yourself a lot of trouble. 

Mr. Flint: When those lights were originally installed, the trees were small. If anything, 

the Photometric Study would say that you need more than 51 lights. 

Mr. Sabol : It was probably up to code, George when it was put in or they wouldn't have 

passed it. 

Ms. Moore: They still need to determine how much lighting is required. We still have 

the candle output and the 51 lights. We are probably in violation because the trees are hiding 

some of it. We need to have 51 lights, even if we cut some of the tree tops down. 

Mr. Sabol: It's not right if you remove part of the trees. 

Ms. Moore: That's what was required when we put them in and they are saying that it's 

the same. You can think that. I don' t  know that we have any information supporting that. I 

don't mind waiting to get it. 

Ms. Stephens: If the trees were pruned properly, it's the same number. The trees just 

need to be pruned properly. If they were, maybe we wouldn't have a problem with the lighting. 

Everything underneath it is no good. That has to be done. There's no way around it. With the 

trees or without, the trees have to go. 

Ms. Moore: The poles and the mechanics. 

Ms. Stephens: Everything. It all has to be replaced, regardless of what you do with the 

trees. 

Mr. Smith: That's correct. 

Mr. Trates: Mind you, the new poles are 3 feet higher than the ones that we currently 

have. We currently have 12-foot poles and these would be 15 feet. It's definitely going to help. 
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Mr. Flint: The good news is that they are also LEDs, which are supposed to last 10 years. 

Mr. Smith: We can trim the trees at any time, but you can't remove a tree without City 

approval. If at some point, we decide that we want to cut those trees down, you can cut them 

down to a certain length and they will grow back. It might look shabby for a while, but they will 

grow back. That's something you have to look at. You can do whatever you want to do with 

them. It will be expensive to trim all of those Magnolias. 

Mr. Sabol: We need to work with each other. Reduce the trees. Take a good look at it 

and face it again. 

Mr. Perry: I just don't want to wait two years to get something done. I watched this 

place get run down. 

Ms. Moore: I approve replacing the lights in compliance with the City regulations, using 

Figure 1. The proposal was almost $38,000, which includes the rewiring. Is that correct? 

Mr. Flint: Yes. 

Mr. Trates: But there is a separate proposal for the electrical panel that is required for 

$10,000. 

Ms. Moore: Do you want all of that under one proposal? 

Mr. Flint: Why don't you approve a not-to-exceed of $50,000. 

Ms. Moore: Including all of the work, which is the main panel. 

Mr. Flint: And the lights. 

Ms. Moore: I thought both panels needed to be done. 

Mr. Smith: No. The other panel is a smaller panel. 

Mr. Flint: I think we can do everything for $50,000. 

On MOTION by Ms. Moore, seconded by Mr. Smith, with Mr. 
Szewczyk, Ms. Stephens, Ms. Moore and Mr. Smith in favor, and 
Mr. Sabol dissenting, replacing 51 lights, all wiring and panels, in 
compliance with the City regulations, in an amount not-to-exceed 
$50,000, was approved. (Motion Passed 4-1) 

C. Amenities Manager - Monthly Report 

Mr. Trates: This month the new pool motor was installed. I have a meeting with Dart 

Pools on January 26, to talk about redoing everything. That will be at the next meeting, along 

with the proposals from George's company. The Kings III emergency call box was installed by 
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the gym. The picnic benches are assembled and installed near the BBQs. The sidewalk grinding 

and replacements were completed on Monday. Our daily activities were the same. For 

February, we have our Valentine' s  Day dinner, which will be a catered event. Please sign up 

early, as space is limited. We also have our annual bus tour to Immokalee. The February 

calendar and newsletter will be out tomorrow afternoon. That is it, besides the proposals. Brad 

and I noticed cracks in the Clubhouse parking lot and how dry it is getting. When Brad was 

looking at it a few days ago, he thinks there is about eight months left and it needs to be resealed 

before it starts crumbling and cracking, to the point of where it will need to be replaced 

completely. I wanted to get approval from the Board to look at pricing for resealing the 

Clubhouse parking lot at the next meeting. 

Mr. Smith: I am good with that. 

Ms. Moore: I have a couple of questions. We have the replacement of gym equipment in 

our Reserve Study. According to regular users, there are issues. I think we need to replace some 

of that equipment. Ron noted which ones need to be replaced. Take a look at them and discuss 

it with the people who use the gym equipment to find out the problems. For the stair stepper not 

to work for several months is crazy. Other equipment is fixed and then two weeks later it is 

banging and clanging. I really think we should look at that. A few years ago, we had the North 

Port High School choir come out here to sing. If everyone is charged $3 to come, all of the 

money would go to them. Because it' s  a charity, Carrabba's could provide free food. I think 

that is a nice way to support our local schools. We did it a couple of times. I know that those 

kids would appreciate it. That's how they make money to pay for the things that they have. I 

think that it would be nice gesture, so I would make that decision. Will you look at cleaning the 

furniture from mold at the pool? 

Mr. Trates: Yes, as well as repainting. 

Ms. Moore: That's all I have. Thank you. 

Mr. Trates: That's all I have for you. Please let me know if you have any other 

questions. 

TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Other Business 

Mr. Flint: Is there any other business that was not on the agenda that the Board would 

like to discuss? Not hearing any, 
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ELEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Supervisor's Requests 

Mr. Flint: If there is nothing else, we need a motion to adjourn. 

TWELFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Adjournment 

On MOTION by Mr. Smith, seconded by Mr. Szewczyk, with all in 
favor the meeting was adjourned. 

Secretary/ Assistant Secretary 
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